1953

Roland E. Cranford and Fred C. Clemore v. H. Spencer Gibbs et al : Brief of Plaintiffs and Appellants

Utah Supreme Court

STATEMENT OF FACTS

This action was commenced by the filing of an Application for Appointment for Guardian Ad Litem for Roland E. Cranford, a minor, one of the Plaintiffs, on October 11, 1950 (R. 1). Thereafter the Court made and entered its Order appointing Lucy H. Cranford Clemore as such Guardian Ad Litem (R. 4). Plaintiffs' Complaint (R. 6) was filed November 1, 1950. In it, Plaintiffs alleged that on or prior to the 31st day of May, 1950, the premises therein described as Juanita #1, #2 and #3 Mining Claims were vacant, unoccupied and unclaimed

lands of the United States of America, subject to location under the mining laws thereof; that upon said date, the Plaintiffs and one Kent F. Clemore entered upon and explored said premises and found thereon rock in place bearing valuable minerals; and that thereupon they located and appropriated as and for mining claims said properties in the manner and method therein stated, including the erection and location of monuments and the posting and recording of written Notices of Location. Plaintiffs also alleged that on or prior to the 20th day of July, 1950, the premises therein described as Debra Fraction #10 Mining Claim was vacant, unoccupied and unclaimed lands of the United States of America, subject to location under the mining laws thereof; that upon said date the Plaintiffs and one Kent F. Clemore entered upon and explored said premises and found thereon rock in place bearing valuable minerals; and that thereupon they located and appropriated as and for mining claim said property in the manner and method therein stated, including the erection and location of monuments and the posting and recording of written Notices of Location. It was then alleged that said Plaintiffs, at all times since said respective locations, have remained in possession of said claims and have worked and improved the same in compliance with the mining laws and customs of Utah and the United States of America.

Plaintiffs then alleged in their Complaint that the Defendants pretended to have, own and claim certain alleged mining claims referred to as Yellow Canarie #1, #2

and #3, Yellow Canarie Fraction and Yellow Canarie Fraction #2 in the same physical area as Plaintiffs' Claims, and conflicting therewith, and that by reason thereof Defendants claimed some right, title, interest or equity in and to the claims of the Plaintiffs, or some part thereof, and that said right, title, interest or equity thus claimed by Defendants was without any validity whatsoever insofar as it conflicted with Plaintiffs' claims. Plaintiffs prayed for a Decree quieting their title.

By way of Answer (R. 15) the answering Defendants H. Spencer Gibbs, sometimes known as H. S. Gibbs, and Ida Pearl Gibbs, husband and wife, W. Dana Gibbs, sometimes known as Dana Gibbs, and Verlie Gibbs, husband and wife, Delone Jensen, sometimes known as Dalone Jensen and also as Delone R. Jensen, and Estell Jensen, husband and wife, Manton C. Gibbs and Flora B. Gibbs, husband and wife, Richard R. Kennedy, sometimes known as Richard Kennedy, and Anita Gae Kennedy, husband and wife, and Walter J. Cropper and Aileen Cropper, husband and wife, and Phil Rosequist and Rose Rosequist, husband and wife, denied all of Plaintiffs' allegations except for the recordation of Plaintiffs' Notices of Location. Said Defendants also counterclaimed (R. 16) and alleged that on or prior to the respective dates therein mentioned extending from April 25, 1949, to September 27, 1950, the premises therein described as Yellow Canarie #1, #2 and #3, Yellow Canarie Fraction, Yellow Canarie Fraction #1, #2 and #4 (*italics ours*) were vacant, unoccupied and unclaimed lands subject to loca-

tion under the mining laws of Utah and the United States of America; that upon specific dates therein named, certain of said answering Defendants entered upon said lands and located and appropriated the same for mining claims; and that said Defendants have at all times remained in possession thereof and have worked and improved said claims in compliance with law. Defendants alleged that Plaintiffs' pretended claims in the same area were without any legal validity whatever insofar as they conflicted with Defendants' claims, and prayed for a Decree quieting their title.

By Amended Answer and Counterclaim (R. 23) the same Defendants alleged the recording of certain Amended Notices of Location on Yellow Canarie #1, #2 and #3 Mining Claims. They also added to the list of Claims upon which they were seeking to quiet title the following: Independence, Independence Fraction, Anita Gae #1, Grover Gibbs Fraction, Grover Gibbs Fraction #2, Lucky Strike #2, and the Claim known as the "Fraction".

Plaintiffs' Reply (R. 32) denied each and every allegation of Defendants' Amended Counterclaim.

After the trial, the Court made and entered Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law (R. 38) in substantial conformity to the allegations of said Amended Counterclaim, and by Decree (R. 50) quieted title in the Defendants named therein to all of the claims set forth in said Amended Counterclaim except that in neither the Findings and Conclusions nor Decree is any mention made

whatsoever of the Grover Gibbs Fraction, Yellow Canarie Fraction #1, #2 and #4, all four of which Claims the Counterclaiming Defendants sought to quiet title to in their Amended Counterclaim. The objections urged to said Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law and to said Decree in Plaintiffs' Motion for a New Trial (R. 53) went to the insufficiency of the evidence to justify the Judgment and Decree entered; that the Judgment and Decree were against the law, and that the Court committed error in law. Plaintiffs' Motion for a New Trial was denied by Order of the Court dated October 14, 1952 (R. 54).

Subsequent to the location of Plaintiffs' claims, Kent F. Clemore, one of the locators thereof, and his wife, conveyed to the Plaintiff, Fred C. Clemore, all of their right, title and interest in and to the Juanita #1, #2 and #3, and Debra Fraction #10 Mining Claims, Exhibit 7.

At the commencement of the trial, the action was dismissed without prejudice as to the Defendants R. H. T. Dunsmore and Jane Doe Dunsmore, husband and wife; Urban Johnson and Jane Doe Johnson, husband and wife; First Doe, Second Doe, Third Doe, Fourth Doe, Fifth Doe and Sixth Doe, and any and all unknown defendants named in the action (R. 73). The sole remaining Defendant who did not Answer and Counterclaim, Howell Mining Company, a corporation, filed no responsive pleading, made no appearance, the action was not dismissed as to it, its default was never entered, and the

Court's Decree contained no judgment for or against this Defendant.

Uranium-bearing ores were discovered in commercial quantities in the area surrounding Marysvale, Piute County, Utah, in the year 1948 (R. 566). This discovery started a "Uranium Rush" and a large number of mining claims were located by various persons, including 65 claims by the Defendant, H. Spencer Gibbs (R. 313). Plaintiffs contend that on April 25, 1949, the Defendants H. Spencer Gibbs, Dana Gibbs and Delone Jensen located two mining claims referred to as Yellow Canarie #1 and Yellow Canarie #2, and that said claims were originally established two miles northeast of Marysvale, Utah, along the old Piute County Highway leading from Marysvale to Monroe, Utah. Plaintiffs further contend that some time thereafter said mining claims and the monuments and markers in connection therewith were moved from their original physical locations along said old County Highway to an entirely new area located one and one-half to two miles north of the point of original location. No new Notices of Location were posted, nor were new Notices recorded, as required by law, at that time, reliance being had upon the original Notices of Location and the recordings thereof. Hence, Plaintiffs take the position that Defendants' claims as moved and re-established in the new area were and are null and void, and that therefore this land was vacant and unoccupied and subject to location and appropriation as and for mining claims by the Plaintiffs, who located their

claims in said new area prior to the actual date of recordation of amended Notices on the original Yellow Canarie Claims, or the location of new and additional claims in said new area.

Plaintiffs' case is grounded upon the long established principal of law that once a locator of mining claims establishes his claims at a given location, erects discovery monuments and corner stakes, and posts and records Notices of Location, describing the physical location of said claims by reference to some natural object or permanent monument as will identify the claims, he is thereafter bound by his own actions and declarations and he may not at a later date move the physical location of said claims to a new area and claim this as his own by relying upon his original locations and recordings and the priority they otherwise would give him. Instead, if he desires to locate a new area, he must do so in full compliance with the Statutes the same as if the original locations in the abandoned area had never been made and must start anew and take each required step without seeking to gain any benefit or priority out of the original locations.

In this Brief and for purposes of clarity, the area where Plaintiffs contend that Defendant H. Spencer Gibbs originally located his Yellow Canarie Claims, which is located approximately two miles northeast of Marysvale, Utah, along the east side of the Old Piute County Highway, and which is shown on Plaintiffs' Exhibit 6 midway between the N. and S. boundaries of Section 16,

Township 27 South, Range 3 West, Salt Lake Meridian, and near the west boundary of said Section 16, will be hereinafter referred to as "Area #1". Also, the area where Plaintiffs contend that the Defendants subsequently moved the Yellow Canarie Claims without any compliance with governing law as to posting and recording of new Notices of Location and where the Defendants chose to locate numerous other conflicting and overlapping claims for the purpose of confusing the entire situation and camouflaging their moving and transplanting of the Yellow Canarie Claims, which area is situated near the center of Section 4, Township 27 South, Range 3 West, Salt Lake Meridian (Plaintiffs' Exhibit 5) and is outlined in a red square on Plaintiffs' Exhibit 6, will hereinafter be referred to as "Area #2".

The testimony and evidence concerning these and other matters is voluminous and will be reviewed in detail in connection with the arguments hereinafter made.

STATEMENT OF POINTS

POINT 1.

THAT THE EVIDENCE AND TESTIMONY OFFERED AND RECEIVED BY THE TRIAL COURT WAS AND IS ENTIRELY INSUFFICIENT TO JUSTIFY THE DECISION MADE AND THE DECREE RENDERED.

POINT 2.

THAT THE DECREE ENTERED HEREIN IS AGAINST THE LAW.

POINT 3.

THAT THE TRIAL COURT COMMITTED ERROR IN LAW.

POINT 4.

THAT ON THE BASIS OF THE EVIDENCE AND RECORD IN THIS CAUSE, NEW FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND JUDGMENT IN FAVOR OF PLAINTIFFS SHOULD BE ENTERED.

POINT 5.

THAT THE TRIAL COURT COMMITTED ERROR IN DENYING PLAINTIFFS' MOTION FOR A NEW TRIAL.

ARGUMENT

POINT 1.

THAT THE EVIDENCE AND TESTIMONY OFFERED AND RECEIVED BY THE TRIAL COURT WAS AND IS ENTIRELY INSUFFICIENT TO JUSTIFY THE DECISION MADE AND THE DECREE RENDERED.

This is an action in equity. The scope of review on appeal in equity cases is clearly settled in this jurisdiction.

“This Court is authorized by the State Constitution to review the findings of the trial court in equity cases, but the findings of the trial courts on conflicting evidence will not be set aside unless it manifestly appears that the court has misapplied proven facts or made findings clearly against the weight of the evidence.”

Olivero vs. Eleganti, 61 Utah 475, 214 P. 313.

To the same effect is *Stanley vs. Stanley*, 97 Utah 520, 94 P. 2d 465, in which the Court collates the authorities on this point. We concede, therefore, that Plaintiffs, in order to succeed on this appeal, have the burden of convincing this Court that the lower Court misapplied proven facts and made Findings clearly against the weight of the evidence. For convenience and clarity, the pivotal issues of fact upon which a correct determination depends will be grouped and argued as follows:

A. Original location of Defendants' Yellow Canarie Claim in Area #1 along the old Piute County Highway, approximately two miles northeast of Marysvale, Utah.

B. Subsequent moving of Defendants' Yellow Canarie Claims by the Defendants to Area #2 located approximately two miles north of their original point of establishment and without new recordation of Notices of Location or compliance with other statutory requirements.

C. Manner, method and place of location and establishment of Plaintiffs' claims in Area #2.

D. Subsequent acts of Defendants in moving, amending, modifying, confusing, and overlapping claims in Area #2, including making of conflicting new locations.

A. ORIGINAL LOCATION OF DEFENDANTS' YELLOW CANARIE CLAIMS IN THE AREA #1 ALONG THE OLD PIUTE COUNTY HIGHWAY, APPROXIMATELY TWO MILES NORTHEAST OF MARYSVALE, UTAH.

Plaintiffs' Exhibit 6 consists of two United States

Geographical Survey Quadrangle Sheets stapled together showing all of the outstanding physical characteristics of the land surrounding Marysvale, Utah, and involved in this litigation. These sheets bear a date of 1945 and show existing conditions as of that time. They show, among other things, that a "graded road" extends in a northerly direction from Marysvale, Utah, into Sections 21, 16 and 9 of Township 27 South, Range 3 West of the Salt Lake Base and Meridian (R. 118). A. R. Shelton, licensed United States Mineral Surveyor, fixed the location of the area now covered by Plaintiffs' and Defendants' disputed mining claims (Area #2) as being in Section 4, Township 27 South, Range 3 West of the Salt Lake Base and Meridian, and he enclosed said area in a red penciled square on Exhibit 6 (R. 118). *This is the same area as shown by Plaintiffs' Exhibit 5*, which is a large map of Area #2, prepared by Mr. Shelton, and which will be referred to in detail hereinafter.

Shelton testified that Exhibit 6 shows that the road above referred to does not enter or approach the area now in dispute (Area #2) but that it by-passes it to the south by a distance of one mile (R. 119). According to Exhibit 6 and according to the testimony of Pratt Seegmiller, the original discoverer of uranium in the Marysvale area who also owns mining claims in Area #2 (R. 204), there was neither road nor trail of any nature going into, crossing or approaching the area included in the red square on Exhibit 6 (R. 120), which is the area involved in the present litigation, prior to the discovery

of uranium in Area #2 in 1948. This was true when Defendants' claims were located in 1949 (R. 204).

Plaintiffs' Exhibit 12 is the original Notice of Location for Defendants' Yellow Canarie #1 Mining Claim. The instrument bears the signature of H. Spencer Gibbs and is dated April 25, 1949. It refers to the location of said Claim as being "one mile east of Sevier River on Old County Highway two miles North East of Marysvale, Utah".

Defendants' Exhibit "B" is a copy of the original Location Notice of Defendants' Yellow Canarie #2 Claim. It is dated April 25, 1949. The location of this Claim is therein stated as follows: "Joins Yellow Canarie #1 on the north end line and is located two miles northeast of Marysvale, Utah along Old County Highway". Defendants' Exhibit "C" is a copy of the original Location Notice of Defendants' Yellow Canarie Claim #3 dated June 7, 1949. The location of this Claim is therein stated as follows: "Joins Yellow Canarie west side line #2". The physical location of the three claims described in these Notices of Location was the subject of much of Plaintiffs' evidence.

Fred C. Clemore, one of the Plaintiffs, an experienced miner, who resided at Marysvale, Utah, testified that prior to December, 1949, he had heard certain "rumors and gossip" concerning the original location of the Yellow Canarie Mining Claims and the subsequent moving of these claims to new locations (R. 132). During April or May, 1950, Pratt Seegmiller, the original dis-

coverer of uranium-bearing ores in the Marysvale area, pointed out to Clemore the exact original location of the Yellow Canarie Claims, including the large pinnacle or cone-shaped formation of yellow colored rock which served as the discovery monuument (R. 135). The ground shown to Clemore was Area #1 located approximately one and one-half miles south of the area enclosed in the red square (Exhibit 6) and immediately adjoined the right or east side of the Old County Highway as it extends north from Marysvale, Utah (R. 136). Clemore fixed the location of this area with an "X" or cross in ink upon Exhibit 6 near the letters "BM" in the north-west quarter of Section 16, Township 27 South, Range 3 West, Salt Lake Base and Meridian (R. 164), and he testified that the coloration of the rock here is distinctly yellow (R. 165). He testified that he was present at this spot when the original Notice of Location of Defendant H. Spencer Gibbs on Yellow Canarie #1 was found at the base of a cone-shaped discovery monument (R. 166).

Leonard Anderson, a resident of Elsinore, Utah, for 55 years, who is part owner of certain mining claims in or near the disputed area, testified (R. 197 to R. 201) that he had regularly traveled over the road leading from Marysvale, Utah, across the Sevier River and thence north to Monroe, Utah, for a number of years. During all of this time the road had been commonly known to the witness as "the Old Monroe Road" (R. 198), and it had never entered, approached or crossed the area now in dispute between Plaintiffs and Defendants (Area #2).

Pratt Seegmiller, a resident of Marysvale for 15 years and the owner of mining claims north of the area in dispute in this action, testified (R. 204) that he was very familiar with the road referred to above. For many years, the name commonly applied to this road has been "the Old County Highway". This witness testified that at no time in his knowledge did this road enter the area (Area #2) where Plaintiffs' and Defendants' Claims are now located and where Mr. Seegmiller's Claims are likewise situated, but is removed therefrom a distance of about two miles. A road now enters that area but it has been constructed recently and since the uranium development, it was not there when the claims in dispute were located, and it is not now and never has been a part of the Old County Highway (R. 204).

In June of 1949, Seegmiller had a conversation with the Defendant, H. Spencer Gibbs (R. 208 to R. 210) concerning the fact that Mr. Seegmiller had discovered on his Freedom Claims which are located immediately north of the area covered by Plaintiffs' Exhibit 5 (R. 203), Location Notices, location monuments and markers referring to the establishment of the Yellow Canarie Claims in that area. Seegmiller recalled distinctly that the Notice referred to Yellow Canarie Claim #2 and stated ". . . two miles northeast of Marysvale, Utah, along the old county highway" (R. 209). In said conversation Seegmiller said (R. 210) :

"Well, I said, 'the Old County Highway would never have run up here, you must have made a

mistake putting such a notice out there', and he said 'Well, it must have been up through here', and when I objected he said, well, he used to run a saddle horse up here a few years ago."

However, we note that Gibbs' counsel took a different view of the location of said highway at the trial, for at R. 204 appears the following:

"BY MR. MELVILLE: Your Honor, I object. We don't claim that the old county road goes through there. There is no question about that fact, and we will stipulate to it."

Subsequently, Mr. Seegmiller made an investigation to determine the exact original location of the Yellow Canarie Claims. Early in July of 1949 he discovered at a point located 300 feet from the Old County Highway, approximately two miles north of the Marysvale Railroad Depot, a natural monument of yellow-colored rock in a pinnacle-like formation and under a pile of rocks on said monument a can containing the Notice of Location for Yellow Canarie #1, bearing the signature of H. Spencer Gibbs as the locator (R. 215 and 216). Seegmiller identified Plaintiffs' Exhibit 12 as being the identical Notice of Location he thus discovered in place at this point (R. 216). He fixed this place or point on the U. S. Geological Survey Map, Exhibit 6, with a rectangular mark near the center of Section 16 in the general Area #1. This point is less than one-half the total distance from Marysvale to the area now in dispute between Plaintiffs and Defendants. The natural coloration of the rock outcrop-

pings in this area is distinctly yellow (R. 218). This agrees with Clemore's description of Area #1 (R. 164 and R. 165), the testimony of Roland Lund (R. 257), John T. Vernieu (R. 261) and Ethel Seegmiller (R. 245).

By contrast, Clemore testified that the predominate color of the natural rock outcroppings in Area #2 before removal of overburden is grayish red (R. 165). Pratt Seegmiller was of the same opinion (R. 219), as was his wife, Ethel Seegmiller (R. 245).

Plaintiffs' Exhibit 15 is a photograph of the original location of Yellow Canarie #1 at the point marked by Seegmiller on Plaintiffs' Exhibit 6, showing the location monument in the foreground and the County Highway in the background with Mr. Seegmiller's truck parked thereon (R. 220). This photograph was taken about July 10, 1949, by Seegmiller or his wife.

Ethel Seegmiller, the wife of Pratt Seegmiller, corroborated her husband's testimony regarding the finding of the location monument and Notice of Location of Yellow Canarie #1 in Area #1 along the Old County Highway (R. 242-243). She identified Plaintiffs' Exhibit 12 as the identical Notice of Location found on the scene (R. 244). She also corroborated the testimony of other of Plaintiffs' witnesses about the location and identity of the "Old County Road" and about the yellow coloration in the Area #1, and testified as to the absence of yellow coloration in Area #2 before the overburden is removed (R. 245).

Roland Lund, a resident of Marysvale for 19 years,

testified that he was very familiar with the road running north and east of Marysvale, Utah, commonly known as the "Old County Highway", and that he had traveled it on many occasions (R. 254). In the summer of 1950, Mr. Lund, while hunting, discovered a monument approximately four feet high situated fifty feet east of said road and approximately two miles northeasterly of Marysvale upon which were written words and figures referring to the monument as being one of the corner stakes of a Yellow Canarie Claim (R. 255). Lund described the coloration of the rock outcroppings in this area as being predominately yellow. Mr. Lund was employed as a miner on the Freedom Claims at the time of the trial, and he estimated that the Freedom #2 Claim, which is shown by other evidence to be in Area #2, was approximately two miles northerly of the point of his discovery of the Yellow Canarie monument along the "Old County Highway".

John T. Vernieu, one of Plaintiffs' counsel, testified (R. 259 to 261) that on August 9, 1951 (five days before the trial) while inspecting the original location of Yellow Canarie #1 along the Old County Highway at a point approximately one and one-half to two miles northeast of Marysvale, in the company of Fred C. Clemore, he came upon the original Notice of Location of Yellow Canarie #1, Exhibit 12. It was found in a tobacco can under a pile of rocks at the top of a rock pinnacle about 300 feet east of the road (R. 260). It was stipulated between counsel that the signature on Exhibit 12 was that of Defendant H. Spencer Gibbs (R. 261).

We submit that the foregoing testimony and evidence clearly establish that Yellow Canarie Claims #1, #2 and #3 were originally located by the Defendant H. Spencer Gibbs on April 25, 1949, April 25, 1949, and June 7, 1949, respectively, at a point approximately two miles north and east of Marysville, Utah, along the Old Piute County Highway (Area #1). The original location monument and Notice of Location for Yellow Canarie #1 were observed in this area by four witnesses at times extending from early July, 1949, to August 9, 1951, and one of the corner monuments of one of these claims was seen by a fifth witness in Area #1 in the summer of 1950. Plaintiff Clemore went so far as to say that it was "rumor and gossip" that the Yellow Canarie Claims were originally located in Area #1 and they thereafter had "flown" (R. 132) to Area #2. Furthermore, the Location Notices for Yellow Canarie #1 and #2 which were admittedly prepared by Defendant Gibbs, who after all should best know the true location of his claims, recite upon their faces, both by reference to fixed and well-defined points (on or along Old County Highway and two miles northeast of Marysville), that they are located precisely where Plaintiffs' witnesses testified that they found evidence of the same, and Yellow Canarie #3 is tied to that same Area #1 by the recital in the Location Notice thereof that it joins Yellow Canarie #2. We think it significant that Defendants' record is barren of any direct denial of the original location of these claims along the Old County Highway. Moreover, as early as April 29, 1949, Defendant H. Spencer Gibbs *knew* that the area

where he now contends that his Yellow Canarie Claims are located (Area #2) *was not* two miles northeast of Marysvale, Utah, as he stated in his original Notices of Location on Yellow Canarie Claims #1 and #2, but rather that it was in fact four miles north of Marysvale, Utah, as Plaintiffs' Exhibits 5 and 6 clearly show it to be, for on *April 29, 1949, four days after the location of Yellow Canarie Claims #1 and #2*, Gibbs located his alleged Lucky Strike #2 in Area #2 and he fixed its location as being "south of Pratt Seegmiller's Freedom Claim #3 and about four miles north of Marysvale" (Defendants' Exhibit K, and R. 372 and 373). Defendants' own map of Area #2 (Exhibit "AA") and Defendants' Exhibit Z, when construed together, show that Freedom Claim #3 and the alleged Lucky Strike #2 Claim are not more than 1500 feet north of where Defendant H. Spencer Gibbs contends that his Yellow Canarie Claims were properly located. Yet his own declarations as contained in the Notices of Location above referred to, if they are to be believed, would of necessity place Lucky Strike #2 and Yellow Canarie #1, #2 and #3 at least two miles apart. We are confident that this Court will look beyond the flimsy film of confusion and the subterfuge thrown up by Gibbs to gloss over his obvious removal of the Yellow Canarie Claims from their original locations in Area #1 to new and greener pastures in Area #2. Surely, Defendants should be bound by their own declarations contained in their Notices of Location and ought not now to be permitted to deny by indirection their own locations.

In order to arrive at a decision in favor of Defendants and against Plaintiffs, the lower Court must necessarily have concluded that the Yellow Canarie Claims #1, #2 and #3 were not located and established originally in Area #1. To reach such conclusion the Court must have ignored or misapplied the proven facts relative to their original physical location in Area #1, brought out by the Plaintiff Clemore and several disinterested witnesses, non-parties to this action. Any determination to such effect is clearly contrary to the evidence and against the weight thereof.

B. SUBSEQUENT MOVING OF DEFENDANTS' YELLOW CANARIE CLAIMS BY DEFENDANTS TO AREA #2 LOCATED APPROXIMATELY TWO MILES NORTH OF THEIR ORIGINAL POINT OF ESTABLISHMENT AND WITHOUT NEW RECORDATION OF NOTICES OF LOCATION OR COMPLIANCE WITH OTHER STATUTORY REQUIREMENTS.

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