1953

Roland E. Cranford and Fred C. Clemore v. H. Spencer Gibbs et al : Brief of Respondents

Utah Supreme Court

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

ARGUMENT

The appeal in this case is taken only from the Order Denying Motion for New Trial (R. 55). This is covered by Point 5 in Appellant's brief. The other four points discussed by Appellants were not actually raised by this appeal. Rules of Civil Procedure 73 (b).

POINT I

ANSWER TO APPELLANT'S POINTS 1 and 2.

Points 1 and 2 raised by Appellants in their brief contain the gist of their appeal. Briefly, it is that the defendants Gibbs originally located his Yellow Canarie No. 1 claim in a different area, and later moved it to its present location, thus invalidating it. By inference from the fact that the three claims are tied together by their location notices, they claim Yellow Canarie No. 2 and No. 3 must also have been moved. It is a matter of factual evidence that this Court is asked to weigh and construe in Appellant's favor. There are 578 pages of testimony and over 50 exhibits received in evidence, and while Appellants quote and refer to various extracts to support their theory of the facts, they do not suggest that there is no substantial evidence to support the facts as the trial court actually found them. The Court not only heard the evidence, but made a personal inspection of the area with counsel from both sides (R. 262).

Evidence to the effect that Gibbs location of the original three Yellow Canarie mining claims was made

where Respondents claim they were made, where they were when the Appellant Clemore found them, and were at the time of the trial can be found in the testimony of H. Spencer Gibbs himself, (R. 264-298, 301) in the testimony of Dana Gibbs (R. 411), Delone Jensen (R. 413), Mrs. Ida Pearl Gibbs (R. 415), Otho Howes (R. 408), Richard Kennedy (R. 458), Walter Cropper (R. 514), and other witnesses for Respondent.

The testimony of Appellant's own witnesses verified the place of location, two of them Dunsmore (R. 232, 239) and Johnson (R. 251) having helped do some staking of the boundaries of these very claims soon after their location.

Appellants would have this Court reject the above testimony which the trial court accepted, and adopt a theory based on conjecture "rumor and gossip" and a stray location notice transplanted from the Yellow Canarie No. 1, apparently written by Mr. Gibbs, which was allegedly picked up by the Appellant Clemore and his attorney just a week before the trial (R. 194) in what Appellants now call "Area #1", a mile and a half away from the original discovery area and away from where all of the uranium activity was taking place. How this stray location notice got at the foreign location neither the Appellants nor anyone else was able to explain (R. 179, 311).

Appellants emphasize the point that this stray notice recites that the Yellow Canarie No. 1 was located

along the “old county highway” which runs or ran northeasterly from Marysvale to Monroe. Both Appellants “Area #1” and “Area #2” are reached by travelling on the “old county highway”. This stray notice (Plaintiff’s Exhibit 12) also says “1 mile east of Sevier River” and “2 miles Northeast of Marysvale, Utah” which conforms to distances for “Area #2” where the location of Yellow Canaries No. 1 was originally made according to Respondent’s witnesses and where it now is. Appellant Clemore described “Area #2” as being 2 miles northeast of Marysvale (R. 139) the same distance as Gibbs’ “misplaced” notice, while Clemore’s altered location notice says “2½ miles north of Marysvale” (Plaintiff’s Exhibit 1, R. 614) and his testimony estimates the distance to “Area #2” at from 2 to 3 miles (R. 181), whereas the distance to this “Area #1” is less than half of that from Marysvale, (Plaintiff’s Exhibit 6) or as Appellants indicate in their brief (p. 26) it is 1½ miles south of “Area #2”, which is 1½ miles closer to Marysvale.

Both parties claimed that their monuments had been tampered with and moved and the court so found (R. 39, 175, 132, 278, 291, 305, 530, 561). The notices in the Yellow Canaries No. 1 and No. 2 were transposed at one time (R. 156, 311, 332, 379, 538) and notices on the “galloping camels” (R. 389) and “Jumping Jeepsters” (R. 398) were allegedly moved. It was not surprising to learn that a Yellow Canarie notice of location was found transplanted a mile and a half from the active uranium area just a week before the trial. Appellants attempt to

dramatize and capitalize upon the fact that Respondent's markers, monuments and notices in the area were changed and tampered with. But the court did not attach much probative value to that as against the abundant testimony of witnesses on both sides that Gibbs' Canarie claims and Gibbs himself was operating in the active area a full year before Appellants came into the picture; that he was in continuous possession and had expended some \$4,000.00 on these claims up to the time of the trial (R. 46, 401-02).

POINT II

APPELLANT'S CLAIM WERE NEVER VALIDLY LOCATED.

Appellants have relied largely upon alleged weaknesses in Respondent's locations, and have said relatively little to explain the evidence indicating movement of their own stakes and monuments and their failure to maintain them (R. 560, 625), the variance between their posted notices and the ones which they recorded (R. 419, 500, 533) or the evidence of abandonment of at least two of their claims. (Supra pp. 6-7). However, the law favors a liberal rather than a technical application of the law to these matters, and we are willing to concede to Appellants the benefit of this interpretation, but at the same time claiming this leniency for ourselves. *Morrison's Mining Rights*, 16th Ed. p. 89; *Wilson v. Triumph Consol. Min. Co.*, 56 Pac. 300, 19 Utah 66.

What is of more importance is the evidence and finding by the court that Appellant's claims were all located subsequent to eight of Respondent's locations with which we are directly concerned and the Appellant's discoveries were actually within prior valid locations. (Supra pp. 5-6). Furthermore, they made these overlapping locations with full knowledge of Respondent's prior claims and awareness of their possession. Under these established facts, Appellant's purported claims were void *ab initio*, and their good faith was open to question. On the principle of law here involved there can be no compromise, for it is well established that one who makes a mining location must do so upon unoccupied mineral lands of the United States. *Lockhart v. Farrell*, 31 Utah 155, 86 Pac. 1077. Utah Code, 1953, Title 40, Chap. 1. In that leading Utah case the court summarized the law:

“The following propositions may be said to be well established and generally recognized: (1) That a discovery of a vein or lode on unoccupied and unappropriated mineral lands of the United States is a prerequisite to a valid location of a mining claim. (2) That a location based upon a discovery within the limits of an existing and valid location is void. * * *”

The law is universal in this respect. As the California court states it:

“A relocation on lands actually covered at the time by another valid and subsisting location is void; and this not only against the prior locator, but all the world, because the law allows no such thing to be done.”

Denman v. Smith, 14 Cal. (2) 752, 97 Pac. (2) 451.

Good faith confronts any subsequent locator who enters upon the actual possession of senior locator's land for the purpose of initiating a claim to the same ground, although the senior location be invalid, and when such entry is in bad faith, such intrusion constitutes a naked trespass.

Brown v. Murphy, 36 Cal. App. (2) 171, 97 Pac. (2) 281.

An interest in mineral lands cannot be acquired by location or stealth as against one in actual possession and working ground under even an attempted location.

Springer v. So. Pac. R. R., 67 Utah 590, 248 Pac. 819.

The undisputed fact of priority and possession of the Respondents in the area in question is controlling in this case. A locator having actual notice that a prior locator was in possession of the ground covered by location notice and was claiming it under the mineral laws was not in a position to make an adverse location or acquire the property thereunder.

Hayden Hill Consol. Min. Co. v. Lincoln Min. Co., 160 Pac. (2) 468 (Idaho).

No mining rights can be initiated on government land by force, fraud or clandestine entry on the actual possession of another, whether the location of such other be valid or invalid. *Winslow v. Burns*, 132 Pac. (2) 1048 (N.M.) One having actual notice that a prior locator is claiming a tract and has done location work thereon cannot make a valid location, and may not even question the sufficiency of the original location or the character of the original occupant's title.

Gerber v. Wheeler, 115 Pac. (2) 100 (Idaho)
30 U.S.C.A. Sec. 38.

A recent California case holds that prior peaceful possession is sufficient to maintain action of ejectment against one who enters as a trespasser.

Smpardos v. Piombo Const. Co., 244 Pac. (2) 435.

The importance of prior and continuous possession is discussed in *Morrison's Mining Rights*, 16th Ed., pages 93, 101, 449-452.

POINT III

THE TRIAL COURT'S FINDINGS AND JUDGMENT
ARE SUPPORTED BY THE EVIDENCE AND THE LAW.

The Respondents in the present case stand before the court upon sound moral as well as legal grounds. The courts have consistently protected the prospector

and miner who has been first to enter upon a location, and has remained there and expended effort and money in the hope of developing a mine. That is the undisputed status of the Respondents.

On the other hand the law has never favored one who appears on the scene subsequently and tries to gain a toe-hold which must be based upon some alleged weakness or technical defect in the prior claimant's location. Priority and possession have usually been the determining elements in controversies of this nature. The matter of maintenance of stakes, wording of notices and technical variances between the two have always been subordinated to these more important considerations which find their basis in the good faith and industry of the locator, and as in the instant case are elements which are factually determinable.

To follow any other premise would result in confusion and uncertainty to every bona fide prospector and locator. The trial court considered these matters and necessarily arrived at sound conclusions on the facts and the law in this case. Its judgment should be sustained.

Respectfully submitted,

ALTON C. MELVILLE

Attorney for Respondents